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PROLOGIE

What you are abput to read is a condensation of the ressarch and
writing of primarily two individuals: FRichard C. Payne, FPh.D, and Theo M.
Beland, It documents how the reservation came into being and why; the
contributicns made during the Second World; and some of what's been happening
gince, but briefly. It is alse a celebration of Fort A. P. Hill's 50th
birthday. I hope you enjoy 1t.

GARY W, LONG
MARJ, BR USRE
May 22, 1991
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TEAINING FOR MOEBILIZATICH
Fort A. P. Hill During World War II

I. Creation of the A, P. Hill Military Reservation.
L. American Military Planning in 1940.

In the years following World War I, the War Plans Division of the
American General Staff produced the "Rainbow Plans" which countered varicus
conptingencies. But, in the summer of 1940, American military planners were
confronted with a worst case scenario: the virtual certainty of war breaking
oul simultaneousiy in twe theaters on opposite sides of the globe. And, to
make matters appear worse, the United States could only field an army of
280,000 poorly trained and badly egquipped soldiers against the veterans of the
massive Axis armies, To mobilize an effective, modern army was certain to
require more time than would be available after the outbreak of hestilities.

By the spring of 1940 the War Plans Division had developed
"RAINBOW-4'"" or the plan to raise a national army of four million men to
eonduet simultaneous operations in the Atlantic and Pacific Theaters. Crucial
to the success of this plan was the ability of the Protective Mobilization
FPlan (PMP) to buy sufficient time for such a massive build-up, The PMP would
use the existing force structure of ten Regular Army and eighteen Naticnal
Cuard divisions to provide a defensive shield while new units were formed.
Therefore, the central assumption of the BMP was that the elements of the
existing force structure would be fully prepared to fulfill their roles in the
immediate defernse of the continental United States (COWUS). This assumption,
the crucial role of the PMP, and the deteriorating intermational situation
brought the BPMP under intense scrutiny.

As the PMP scrutiny increased, two major problem areas became evident
to military plammers. First, the Naticnal Guard was poorly trained and in a
low state of readiness for its mopilization mission., Seceond, the mebilization
station list contained in the PMP was inadegquats to meet the peeds of
defending CONUS. 'These two problemns are the initial links in the chain of
events that led toc the creation of the A, P, Hill Military Reservation.

On May 31, 1940, Presicdent Franklin D. Rocsevelt asked the Congress
for authority to call the National Guard into service for cne calendar year
without the start of hostilities ageinst the United States. Although passage
of thiz National Guard resolution and the subsequent Se =¢tive Service Act was
delayed until]l Bugust and Septerber, respectively, thei: intreduction in
Congress caused frantic planning by the General Staff. Scon after the
President's request, the G4 instructed the Quartermaster Genesral to prepare
cost estimates for new, semi-permanent housing for 1.2 milliom men who were
likely to remain at their mebilization stations for at least a year. On July
11, 1940, General George €. Marshall, Ammy Chiei of 5taff, instructed the G3
to revise the mobilization statico list while taking into accoumt the need for
housing and training areas for all existing divisions and the distribution of



these divisions to provide the strategic defense of CONUS. BAn important
guideline from Marshall to the G3 was to select divisional mobilization
staticns on land currently used as military reservations or owmed by the
Federal or State governments. This was to prevent the delay of constructicon
by land acquisition and/eor condemation procesdings, The revised station list
was submitted to Marshall on July 30th and he directed the 33 and G4 to
prepare a coordinated time table for inducting the National Guard into Federal
Servirce based upon completion times for the new cantonments.

B. Executing the Protective Mobiligzation Plan.

The responsibility for executing the PMP was divided between two
parallel chains of camand reflecting the War Department's traditional
insistence upor separating the routine conduct of administration and logistics
from the operational command of the Army in the field. So, for purposes of
routine business, CONUS was divided into nine zones of the interior, called
Corps Areas, which answered directly to the War Department and exercised
peacetime coammand and control over Regular Army units in their zones. The
Corps Area Comrmander was responsible for the posts, camps and stations in his
assigned geographic region as well as overseeing Quartermaster Corps and Corps
of Engineers activities affecting his area., Upon mobilization, operational
comnand of ground forces was assumed by the commanding generals of the four
numbered continental armies, Incidentally, the army commanders were corps
drea cavmanders in peacetime.

Commanding the First Zrmy in the summer of 1940 wasg Lieutenant General
{LTG) Hugh Drum, the senior general officer than on active duty. From his
headgquarters cn Governor's Island, New York, he exercised operational command
of ground forces in the northeastern United States., Within the First Army
area of operations lay the Third Corps Area. Major General (MG) Walter S.
Grant assumed cammand of this area on October 9, 1940, with headquartera at
Baltimore Marvyland. MG Grant presided over the frantic preparation for
implementation of the PMP in an area comprising Virginia, West Virginia,
Maryland, New Jersey, Delaware and Pennsylvania. Although these two generals
had a lengthy association during their careers, their relaticnship as Rrmy
and Corps Area commanders was a curious one. There was no direct Command
link, but their responsibilities in regards to the PMP were closely
interrelated which necessitated frequent consultation. LTG Drum was charged
with the training and operaticnal readiness of the Regular Army and Naticnal
Guard divisions in the Pirst Avmy area. MG Grant was responsible for the
cantonment construction and facility improvements in his corps area required
by the new mobilization station list, therefore, was much like a client-agent
with the Corps Area Coammander providing housing for scon-to-be-mobilized
troops and such training facilities as the AZrmy Comander deems necessary. In
this particular relationship, LTG Drum and MG Grant would become principal
actors in the establishment of the &. P. Hill Military Reservation, as the
nesd for such a facility for First Rrmy's Mational Guard divisions
became apparent.



The revised mobhilization station list for the PMP placed three
National Guard divisions in the Third Corps Area: the 44th Division at Forl
Dix, New Jersey; the 28th Divisicon at Indiantown Cap Military Reservaticn,
Pennaylvania; and the 29th Division at Fort Meade, Marylamd. This
distribution was wel! considered for the strategic deployment of units within
the Third Corps Aresa and conformed to Ceneral Marshall's guidance to place the
National Guard divisions on land currently owned by the Federal or State
governiments. However, from the standpoint of training facilities available,
all three stations left samething to be desired. In the haste with which the
revised station list was assembled during the last three weeks of July, the
War Department delegated the actual inspection of the proposed divisional
cantonments to the Corpes Area Commanders. Thess inspections were generally so
hasty and cursory that they proveked an investigation by a Senate Select
Commiltes chaired by Harry 5. Truman.

The stationing of the 29th Division was especially problemabico.
The decision by the G3 himself to move the division from Sabine River,
Louisiana, to Fort Meade, Maryland, was apparvently because of pressure to
provide strategic defense for the nation's capital. From looking at a map,
Fort Meade seemed an inspired choice, but it conprised only 7,500 acres and it
lay in the Baltimore-Washington corridor where real estate prices made
expansion prohibitive. However, there is no evidence in the Third Corps Area
files to suggest that Fort Meade was ever seriously considered as a divisional
cantonment site during the frantic revision of the PMP statien list.

2. Searching for an Artillery Range.

On July 23, 1%40, Lieutenant Colonel (LTC) Phillip Thurber, a staff
officer at the Service Command School in Baltimore, wreoke to the Third Corps
Brea G3 in "refevence the preject to locate a military reservation which
ehould have an area content of zporoximately 60,770 acres of land, suitahle
for a garrison area of som 600 acres and a adizcent firing and maneuver
area. .. and siatine that, besides the reconnaissance of Port Lee and Fort
Eustis, "there was a remaining project to locate a similar area, independent
of any post somewhere 1n the territory betwesn the Potomac River and uppser
Chesapeake Bay, such area to be on suitable soil suitably drained, adjacent to
road, rail and water communication and having the possibility of installation
of suitahle utilities." LTC Thirber's report showed that acquiring land
addacent to Fort Lee (Petershurg, Virginia) and Fort Bustis (WHewport Mews;
Virginia) was not practical. He further stated that the remaining project
woluld be regarded as confidential and receive his persaonal abttention, Bubt,
this memorandum does not shed any light on what was intended by an area
"independent of any post." Was it to be independent of any existing post and
therefore a cantooment site for divisions o be mobzlized at a later date, ar
was it to be a training area independent of any contonment site? The answer
is probably umknown to nhistory, but the seed that would become R. P. Hill
Military Reservation was planted and it would grow considerably in the late
sumer and fz11 of 1340.



On October 17, 1240, First Army asked Third Corps Area to provide a
detailed accounting of firing range facilities for the 28th Division at
Indiantown Gap and the 2%th Division at Fort Meade. On October 22nd, Third
Corps Area responded that the range facilities for the 28th Division were
barely adegquate and for the 29th Division they were completely unsatisfactory.
Third Corps Area concluded that "in addition to the restrictions of
firing...{i.e. limited small arms ranges, heavy weapons and artillery firing
enly one day per week at Edgewood Arsenal and no suitable area for artillery
units to deploy tactically)...,for the 29th Division, the reservation at Fort
Meade is to small and will be to much further reduced by necessary camping
space for the division and for the various zdne of the interior installations
to be located there as to provide insufficient maneuver space for any but
small wits."

Cn Cctober 29th, LTG Drum; at the personal reguest of MG Grant,
inspected the Fort Meade facilities. Then, on November 5th, Grant wrote a
personal letter to Drum to follow up on discussions presumably held during the
inspection visit. 1In this letter appears the first reference to the site of
the A.F. Hill Military Reservaticn:

"We shall still be without facilities (at Fort Meade) for anti-
gircraft practice and 37nm gun practice, A satisfactory artillery
range cannot be obtained with the acquisition of (additional land
adjacent to Fort Meade). HNo other suitable site, except the one
south of the Rappahannock and southeast of Fredericksburg, in
Virginia, previously menticned in my canversation with you, has yst
beery determined."

Exactly who first suggested Carcline County, Virginia, as a site for
heavy weapons and maneuver training facilities is uncertain, but the site
selection likely evolved from continued staff work such as LTC Thurber's in
July, What is known is that LTC Oliver Marston, an artillery officer
staticned in Richmond and acting as an agent of the Third Corps Area
commander, made a detailed investigation of the Bowling Gresn area on
September 30, 1940, He enthusiastically recamended on October 9th that the
War Department procure the Caroline County site. This coincided,
incidentally, with MG Grant's assumption of Third Corps Area command.

D. GCrant Suggests Caroline County.

Exactly when MG Grant became personally aware of LTC Marston's report
is not known, but he evidently menticned it to LTG Drum during the inspecticn
of Fort Meade on Ocicher 29th. drant's letter to Drun on November 5th was
followed by a series of actions which resulted in the relatively rapid
erdorsement of Marston's recomendation. On Novewber 15th he wrote to Drum to
arrange a joint inspection of the Carcline County site by their respective
staffs. Four days later this inspection tock place and the report rendered to
Drum on November 24th"...recomwnended that the Federal Government acguire by
the quickest practicable means approximately 160 sgquare miles of Caroline



County, Virginia, within the following roughly designated boundaries:
Spotsylvania-Carcline County boundary to Rappahannock River; along
Rappahannock River (omitting Port Royal) to junction of Peumansend Cresk just
north of Pin Hock: thence scuth along road through Pin Hook, Plainview,
White's Mill to Alps; then west and northwest through Sparta to Milford
{exclusive); thence northwest along Mattaponi River and its tributary, Ny
River, to the Spotsylvania-Caroline border. Border towns, such as Milford,
Bowling Green, Woodford, and Guinea could be amitted, but the rail facilities
in these towns should be available to the troops."

Without waiting for Drum's written concurrence, Grant formally
requested on Noverber 23rd that the War Department acquire the Caroline County
land. ©On December 12th, the War Department retwmed the request for
clarification of certain points. Specifically, they wanted whether any
suitable government-owned land had been considered; whether the area regquested
could be reduced; and whether LTC Marston's cost estimate was not overly
optimistic. Grant replied on December 3lst, satisfactorily answering the War
Department concerns, and clarifying the major purposes the area was intended
to serve:

"a. To provide an area for Corps maneuvers for the 1I Corps
and an area for division maneuvers of the divisions of the
IT Corps, which shall not be subject to the restrictions
and artificialities which are imposed on units attempting
training exercises and maneuvers in areas cut up by patches
of land over which troops are not permitted to pass..."

"h. It is intended to estahlish in the area; 1f acquired, the
service practice range for the artillery of the 29th Divisian,
stationed at Fort George G. Msade, Maryland. This range would
of course be available also for the other divisions of the II
Corps."

Yo, If this land is acquired it is intended to keep it as nearly

constantly in use throughout the vyear as training conditions

imposed on the First Rrmy by General Headquarters will permit.

It is hoped later to establish base camps for two divisions at

nearly opposite corners of the area and so far as conditions

permit to have at lsast one division of the Corps always in the

Field,"

Zpparently convinced by the weight of argument, The War Department
agreed one week later. On January &, 1341, an internal War Department memo
sent to the G4 with a listing of recamrended items for inclusion in the land
aquistion portion of the Fourth Supplemental Defense Appropriatiens Bill for
Fiscal Year 1941. Included on that list was a Fredericksburg site of 109,440
acres to be purchased at an estimated cost of £1,650,000. The memo was
approved and the request submitted to Congress. The die was cast for a
confrontation with the citizens of Carcline County



II. Public Opposition in Caroline County.,
4. The Public Relations Battle.

The Army had conducted its staffing and field investigation with great
discretion, keeping the citizens of Carcline County totally unaware of the
impending acguisition. HNortheastern Carcline County attracted the attention
of military planners because of its sparse population and relatively low
econonic level. They were genuinely concerned that military necessities be
met with minimal disruption to the civilian econamy. But the citizens of
Cargline County were fiercely proud of their Virginian heritage and the
comunity was remarkably close-knit, Many families had lived in the area
since the seventeenth and eighteenth centuries.

Given the above facts and the American Tradition to be suspicious of
anything military, announcing the acquisition to the local coammunity required
diplomatic handling, which the War Department might have proved capable of
doing, if it had been allowed to try. The chief culprit for the botched
public relations was Representative 5. Otis Bland who leaked Lo the Richmond
Times-Dispatch the fact that the appropriations bill before the Congress
contained a reguest to purchase a large tract of land in Virginia to be used
as a military reservation. Neither this newspaper account nor the ones to
Eollow carried a precise location for this reservation or when the land was to
be acquired, except that it would be soon., This information, or lack thersof,
created an atmosphere for the starting of wildly conflicting rumors and
speculations which the War Department could not counter because, by law and
regqulation, it was bound to not male a public statement whatsoever until
Congress had passed the appropriation. So, for the first three weels of
March, 1941, the War Department was unable to present its case in order to
defend itself against the furcr in the local coomunity.

To add to the confusion, en February 28th, Representative T. G. Burch
of sputhside Virginia district had sent a telegram to General Marshall and MG
Grant requesting the War Department not make final decision on aite zelection
until it had cornsidered "the ideal site located in Pittsylvania County.'" The
Danville, Virginia, Chamber of Comerce alse wired Grant with the same
request., When Grant resisted, Burch persisted, writing again on March 7th and
enclesing an article from the Richmond Times-Dispatch describing the mounting
resistanece Caroline County (Congressmen Bland had met with a group of Carcline
citizens on March S5th and informed them that the War Department would announce
its intention to locate the camp in their county as soon 23 the money was
provided)., The idea of relocating the maneuver area to Pittsylvania County
was never more than foolish faney. The selection of the Carcline site had
been thoroughly staffed 1t was clearly the militarily caorrect decision. 2Any
attempt to second guess it at this point was likely to create more probleams
than it spolved. &And it did create problems. By the time CGrant discarded the
Pittsylvania site, cn March 20th, his brief consideration of it had already
damaged further the hattered public relations between the Rrmy and the



Carcline inhabitants by providing ammunition tc his opponents and by making
him and his staff hesitate when it was sssential for them to stick to their
gums.

The timing of Grant's hesitaticn was particularly bad since President
Roosevelt signed the appropriations bill inte law on March 17th, which
empowered Grant to proceed with the land acquisition and te make public
statements about it. Yet, the first public statements contained gross
indiscretions that fueled the controversy. On March 20th, the Fredericksburg
Free Lance-Star quoted LTC Theodore Arter, the Third Corps Area public
relations officer, as saying "the Army has no desire to go where it is not
welcoms. The RZrmy prefers the Carcline site in preference to others
considered and desires to establish the camp there, but is not disposed at
present to take over the area against the wishes of the people.” This
represented actual policy as evidenced by intermal War Department doocuments.
MG Grant had ordered the Real Estate Branch of the Office of the Quartermaster
General to suspend all acquisition actions on March 19th, the day after he met
with a delegation of Caroline civic leaders. On March 20th, after discarding
the Pittsylvania propesition, Grant wrote a personal letter to LTG Drum and
despaired of finding any solution to the problem, concluding with this
suggestion:

"1t might be a good plan, if worst comes to worst, to give the

Governor and the State Planning Board the specification of the
kind of training area desired, let them dig it up for us, and

let them handle the attendant protests and local antagonisms."

But, the cne person who never had any second thoughts about the
Carcline County location was LTG Drum. With his focus clearly on the military
necessity for this particular maneuver area and being relatively insulated
from the storm of protest, he was in no mood te change his mind, and he was
net about ta let this direly needed training facility slip from his grip.

With a crafty subtlety gleaned from forty years experience in Army polities,
Dinm moved to shore up Grant and to salvage the public relations situation.

B. LTG Drum's Change in Strategy.

An abrupt change in policy towards the Caroline site ocourred
after March 20th. Grant's original strategy was to use reason on the public,
but it was clearly inappropriate to defeat organized cpposition. B more
cynical approach emerged after March 20th that took a stern and inflexible
public posture while indulging in covert "horse trading' as necessary to
satisfy the special interests of the opposition’s more influential members.
Grant himself suggested the point of attack in a letter to Drum in which he
described the two main reasons for the protests as being "the tract embraces
too large a part of Carocline and its loss...would sericusly affect the tax
receipts..."and"...the matter of the historic homes, same of which are now
lived in by descendants of the old families,



In light of this inteiligence, the response was simply te redraw the
boundaries to reduce the area and exclude the historic homes and other
particularly valuable property. 8o, Grant wrote to Mr. Bérnard Mahon,
comonwealth Attorney for Caroline County, on March 21st requesting that a
follow-up meeting with Carcline citizens be postponsd because "before the
meeting, we should like fto see what we can do in changing the proposed
boundaries." The meeting then took place on March 27th in Bowling Green.
Eleven hand-picked representatives of Caroline County mel an inpressive array
of "brass" from the War Department: MG H. C. Pratt, commanding general of the
II Army Corps; and Colonel Marion Howze, First Aomy G4 and persanal
representative of LTG Droum.

Detailed accounts of this three-hour nneﬂting appeared in the
Fredericksburg Free Lance-Star on March 27tk and the Caroline Progress on
Bpril 3rd. According to the accounts, MG Grant gave a speech depicting the
dire military necessity that g lled the War Department to acguire the
Carocline tract. He then u*sp ayed a map sﬂmwhng the dramatic reductioris in
the desired area with the exclusion of ar; racts containing historic homes.
MG Pratt then gave a detailed account of hnw the area would be used. Finally,
COL Howze recnunted the history of the search for a suitable First Army
Maneuver Area, including the reasens why the Pitlsylvania site had been
rejected. He nade thu sensible cbservation that, al*hough the War Department
sympathized with the plight of those about to be dispossessed, "an attempt to
establish a camp in any area of the east would bring up Lhe same problems that
confromt the Army in Caroline." The meeting concluded with an appeal to
patriotism by MG Grant, who reminded the citiszens present "the werid is at

war . ..These homnes may not be saved unless we get some place Lo Lrain Lhese
troops."

C. The Oppositicon Gives In.

In the face of such g carefully orchestrated performance, the
organized opposition to the Carcline n&iitﬂry reservation gquickly collapsed.
LT3 Drum not enly carried the day, but made himself the adjudicator of
disputes over the exclusion of valuable nrcgert_e. and, thus, a here in the
eyes of the local eitizenry. Om Bpril 3rd, Drum sent a personal letter to
Grant formalizing the revised boundaries of the mansuver area. Disputes over
property exclusions continusd for some time and the boundaries were not
finalized for ancther year

On March 282, 1841, MG Grant released the following statement to the
press:

"Oon account of the imperative need of an artillery range and
training area by the Firsi Army 'ﬁ Lhe gEﬂE’d‘ logality of
sgstem Virginia, and oh acoount of the fact that the
Caroline County traci meets the Army needs tar better than
other tentative areas considered, it is announced that after



again cansidering the matter, the First Aooy will continue
with its plans to acaui" the Carcline Coumty tract, with the
boundaries a=z already proposed subject bto slight nodificatioms
to bhe decided at an ear.y date."

"This action is taken only on account of the pressing demands
of suitable national defense, and 1s a matter of profound
regret and concerm.”

I, Naming the Reservation

fow that the decision had been made to acgiiire the Caroline mansuver
area, a name needed to be selected. On March 3lst, the Historical Section of
the Army War College was ashed Lo suggest threc possible names. On April Znd,
retired Colonel Oliver Spaulding, the chief of the Historical Section, sent a
memorandum Lo the G2 with the suggested names: Mchndrew, Hill and Matgan.
Accompanying the memo was a copy of the article on Ambrose Powell Hil
contained in the Encyclopedia Britannica. Three weeks latm. the G3 sent a
memorandum to the Chief of Statff thgnwz_n,“b that the name "A. P. Hill
Military Reservatiom" be used for the Caroline site. The G4 cancurred on May
15t and the Chief of Stafi approved the recommendation on May 5th. War
Department General Order Number 5 was published June 11, 1941, officially
designating the First Army Maneuver Rrea as the A. P, Hill Military
Reservation.

What is curious about this procedure is that the question seems to
have been resclved purely within the War Department. A logical inference is
that the War Depariment wished to resolve the matter quickly, with as little
public visibility as possible, given the state of public relatlions on the
whole issue. From this perspective, it is hard to fault the G3's procedure or

vhoice. By memorializing Lieutenant General Ambrose Powell HLlI, the great
artilleryman and hero of the Rrmy c:f Northern Virginia, the War Department
appealed to a2 vein of patrictism which no EELl‘LEEPEC ing Virginian would be
without., Indeed, it is pxg*ab‘y the only deciszion which did not arouse
controversy in the local conmmanity.

II1. Acquiring the Land for the A. B, Hill Militarsy Reservation.
L. Procurement ané Construciion Begims.

With public cpposition calmed, LTG Drum gave MG Grant instructions to
begin the inmediate zcguisition of land. In a letter to Grant dated April 3,
1541, Drum delineatsd an arsa of spproximately 70,000 acres for which an
immediate military necessiiy existed. Ee also established a timetable for the
frocurenrsnt of land and set priorities for particular trects. Using the path
of Foute 301 as the u*m-clug line, Drizn Instructed that the northern portion
should be made available for maneuvers by June lst and the southern portienm,
to be used fer artillery practice rangbs, Ly Sephenber 1st. This smphasis an
the mansuver aspects of the new reservation, despite the inadegquate range



farilities abl Fort Meade, was tc have considerable impact on the pre-war
history of the training area.

Drum's request that Grant procure 42,000 acres of land in lesz than
two months' time caused tYhe Third Corps Area commander to protest against his
superior's wishes. In a dictated telephone nessage on Rpril 4th, Grant gives
Mis epinion that "it will reguire an exodus of hundreds of people within lass
than sixty days, and I don't think the present s wation will stand it.

Drum replied the following day that "while the Lra‘n4ng of I Carps treops
requires an area early in June .aIgH enough for (regzmental) combat team
training, I do net expect ihe whole of the June area to be available at that
time...1f you think changing the word 'before' June first to '"from' will
clarify the views expressed, I am willing and s¢ authorize with and
understanding that this will not block securing adequale area for combat team
training in June."

Armed with this clarification, Grant wrote a letter of instruction on
April Tth Lm Brigadier Gene: -al {BG) Brehen Somervell, ﬂbblﬁtaﬁt Quartermaster
General. On April 9th, BG Somervell appointed LTC R. G. Moses as lialson
officer between the cormanding general of II Corps and the Office of the
Ouartermaster General. Somervell empowered Moses to make adjustments
regarding minor boundary questions. Moses would also furnish a map to
Somervell indicating camp sites suxect-4 by the 1I Corps. The land for these
camps would be agguired first; after which, ac 94A51t10n would proceed Lrom
north to south in order to provide a suitable training area at the eariiest
practicable date. OLlher arrangements made by EGFthELl were spalled oul in
the official War Department press of April lﬁh.. Sensitive to the issue of
displaced persons, the War Department annoumced that ”cunprehensive plans for
the resettlement and rehabilitation' of the approxamately 4,700 atffected
persong had been made. These plans included establishing a Bowling Green
affice to "act as clearinghouse for those seeling new locations in the general
vicinity of the site;" providing assistance fram the Farm Security
Bdministralicn and the Fe&e-al Land Bank; and determining prices Lo be pald by
"a fair HLM complete appralsa of the value of the land and its improvements"”
made by "government and local appraisers under *he directiaon of the Soil
Conservation Service of the U. 5. Depavimen* of Agriculiure.”

O Ma' 15, 1541, four hnmdred and thirty scres of land within the

"June 1 area’ were actuslly scgquived and the fivst troops Iram the Fifth
Engineer Regiment of Fort Belvoir arrived. Thess engineer soldiers would
prepare a canpsite for 18,000 troops &t a location north of Route 17 in the
vicinity of Rappahannock Rcademy, The Carcﬁ‘“e Progress for May 29th reported
1,180 engineers labo *‘Hg favapichly on "three sites, one near Mount Creeslt just
off Highway 17, & second on Route €14 2ack of Rappahannock Reademy, and a
third on Route 607 nssr ¥oss he Y The pace of the activity was undoubtedly
1nsp;rac by the knowledge that & s o occupy these campsites would
arrive in seven days. On June 3rd, LTC John McLaurine arrived on specisal
orders to activate the 1336th Service Unii, the station cormplerent for the
reservation. Headguarters were established in the recently vacated Mica High
School.

FIMs
—_—



BE. Money Fums Short and Anxiety Runs High.

Bl: the elemenss of TG Dran's ambitious timetable were falling into
place, but trouble was brewing. As E;cnhd of the Quarte*waster General
carpleted the taking of opiions on the "June 1 area", it became evident that
the War Depaltment's skepticism.abﬂui LTC Marston's udh_nﬂte of real estalbe
prices in Caroline County had been well founded. The first alamn came from a
conference held by MG Pratt, the Il Corps cammander, to take stock of
axpenditures for the "June 1 area" 1; to progect additional costs. Pratt
reporied to Drium en July 2ad that .. .U here will remain about 5380, GGG Lo
purchase additional areas ort Royal- aud‘;1g Creen Road (Foute

&

301)." In this report Pratt also raised the possibility that the "September
area” boundaries might be altered in accord with the funds remsining for its
purrhafp on J;ly 3:d, the Caroline Progress reported that the acquisition of
the "June 1 area” Was now complete and that appraisals were proceeding in the
"pr ember 1 area”. Pawtva, it 3159 s-ated that due to a shortage of [unds,

pians for purchase of L“L "Beptember 1 area aﬁpva:a wicettain and emphasized
this aspect cof the article by headlining -t "ASMY ARES BOUNDARY CHANGES SEZM
..' . ELJ‘EIE H

€. LT3 Drignm and Public Relations (Again).

The furor touched off in the local comwanity by this news was
ceminiscent of Harly Mareh, and cnce again it fell to the tenacious Drum to
qcotnu an outraged public, He continued the appraisal of the "September 1
arez" and had a detailed survey made of it in ooder to lay aut artillery
ranges. This impressed upon the local populace the Zimy's intention Lo buy
and “ﬂﬁ this area. Then, Dt visited the &, P. Hill Military Reservation on
JL. 7th and granted an interview to the Carcline Progress in which he praised

e patiriotism and seli- sacrifice of the Carcline Countians., Drum was guoted
to the effecf that mare funds "ungquestionably would be needed” to complete the
purchase. This visit had a very steadying <flect as Drum adroitly combined
factfinding with a reaffirmation of policy and p““‘l: relztions, It bore
fruit withln a few weeks, The July 17ih issue of the Caraline Progress
carvied an article -n which the farmers cf the "September 1 area" ware given
senaible advise to continue thelr wc-i as usual until the War Department
armouneed a dacision on the reservation bowvndaries,

That decisicn came within a week 25 the July Z4th issue of the Carcline
Progress reported that My, Donahue of the Soll Censervation Service, and undel
whose dirsetion the land was being purchased, had returned Ifrom a conferene

in Washington with news that the War Department would definitely acguire the
entire 70,000 zeres as originally snnounced. Appraisals were expected to be
conpleted by Bugust 13th, but no options could be taken until Cangress
approved sufficient funds for purchese of ths enlire tract., Coumty Agent C.
B, Landford was quoted =s advising fzrmers to conbinue norrel operations,
especially since permissicn to harvest Srops in the aresa had been reguasted,

N. The Third Supplementzl Nzticnal Defense Appropriations Aot (F¥42).



On Bugust 5, 1541 the War Department divected the Quartermaster
Seneral to dnelude i Ris neft Sppropridtions estimgte an item for 21,206,000
te acguire the remaining lands of the "September 1 area." The War Department
alse reduced the sventual acreage for The A. P, Hi1l Military Reservation Srom
110,000 acres to spprodimelely 20,371 acre Prasunably, Lhld was Lhe re=sult
pf the land appraisals conducted in the ""pra“JFL L area." Bul, at this
point, the matter of additicnal Sunds seemed to languish. In reality, there
was a great deal of nder-the-tablis Ltrading concetning boundary adjustments in
the area still to be acguirced,

The Heouse ﬁfk-, riations Committee did not begln considerabion of Llis
additional funds needed to purchase the remaining 38,728 acres until November
with its report to the full Congress coming in esarly Decarber. Progiess
seemed positively g.iacizal when the evenis cf December 7, 1941 galvanized the
Congress inlo action., The Third Supplensnial National Defense Agpropriaticiis
At fr,u: Fiscal Year 1947 was approvaed by Congress on December 17th., The

ro.line Progress reported on Christmas Day, 1941, that optioning of land in
Lhe adjusted "Seplerher 1 a:na' would begin Decenber 29th. Then, o Januasy
15, 1942, the Frogress carried notice that "possession of the 'September 1
area' or extens-ap of the A:. 7. Hill Military Reservation will be required by
February .5, even if condemmation of tracts becomes necessary.' GCovernment
posseaston of the adjusted area; in which the a.L-i'.e:y range was to he
constructed, was recorded in the Caroline County ¢ e;‘:'s office o February ©,
1942 the finsl tract was recorded May 4, 1942, f The "Jume 1 area" had becn
recorded an July 14, 1941.)

E. The Econaric Impact an Caroline Cowity,

lerause the acguicitzcon of th £, =21l Mliztary Beservation and the
Berause the acgicsitzcn of the A, 11 M2 v = rvation 1t1-
subseguent evacuaticon of families were such emctionat.y charged issues, 1t i
apprapriate al lhis time to attempt some cohiective asseszment of ¢ impact
wpon the civilian commundty. In 1548, *he Novfolk District of the Corps of
Engineers prepared a study of this impact. BAcccrding to this study, "there

wara 534 familiez displaced, comprising 2,319 "_:‘.:.a...::.:an-_., of whickh 1,315 were
white and 1,004 wers Negroes, Of the :ctal mumber of families displaced 68%

vere have owners and, . .approximately 25% of zl) displaced persons moved

putside the coumty." The study went on to note that 75% of the land purchased
was classed an wosdliand area and fully half of the teta! area "was made up of
woodland tracts withou!l ingroverments," The principal agricultural activity on

the active farms scattered throughout the vast zres was frucik gardening, wotih
sWeel potaipes, welermelons, cantalouges, tomatoes and cucumbers heing Lhe
most importaot crops. Although ten sc..w's wers closed, and the county
experienced the "loss of average daily daneoe of 354 pupils", no new
schools Were required 1o absurh Lhe remaining {L._SHL.:!.CI-L. students. In purely
conomical temms, the report conciuvded that the net loss to the county was
£5,325.67 per annsn in tax revenues, which was more than offset by $23,102.00
per Enmim saved by the Commonwealilh of Virginds in road maintsnance costs.

-~



Thie canclucion to be drawn Srom the above facts is that LTC Martson.
MG Grans, LTS Doum, and the others involved in the selection and ultimate

purchase of the site that became A. P, Hill Military Reservation Xad done
their work ralher well. Literally nundreds of thousands troops passed through

this training ares during World War I and the value of the reservatian for
training latge units proved insaiculable, That such trainons resource wWas
acquired on the eve of the war with such g reiatively small disruption af the
cavilian commmity is truly remarkable. Certainly LTS Doum; the “'godiathe: af
the &. P. Bill Military Reservatizn”, must have fell gratified with the
resuliz.

W, IT Army Corps-and the Fipst Maneuvers,

L. Commang aad Contesl Eelationships
In the summer of 1940, the Protective Mobilization Plan (PMP) was
implemested for the purpsse of expanding the Fiwy fo provide immediate defense
of the continental United States. With the implementation of the PMP came Lhe

activation of tactical corps headguarters which were separate and apart from
the corps areas, The tactical corps cummanders were allocated resources fram
the murbered army conmanders and we the training cf units
gassigned to thesn under the BMP., So revained n effect, the
A. B, HIll Military Reservation was under the camand and contral of First
U.8. By, and, since there were no units permanently assignied to the
facility, its use was scheduled by Pirst Ry for its own Witsa. In =
L7G Drun delegated this authority so that during the fiust eight menths of 1ts
enisternice, the rescrvation was under the conticl of the I U.5. Corps
headquacters which scheduled its subordinate units to wse the facilitles and

supervised their trzining while tlere.

“he 1. Corps was activated Rugust I, 2540, with headguaiters
cgTablished &t Wilmington, Delaware. A statlon list; dated HMapeh 23, L154L,
shows units ‘as diverse as tiuchk regiments, topographical engiiesr companles,
signal battalicns, sircra’t observation squadrans and separate antitank and
antizireraft Lattalicon=, Duite a mynber of Lliese wilts were sSent Lof, P.
Hill Reservatinoz to train. But, =t was the three infantry divisions assigned
to I7 Corpe (2Bth, 295h & 44th) that were given pricrity for use of the
fraining aresa.

B. Preparing for the Carcling Maneuvers.

For October and Novembsy, 1941, the Army planned to cenduct the
largest peacetime maneuver in 2is Ristory with tyo entire corps opposing each
sther on land from Fort Bracg, North Carclina, to Port Jackson, North
Carolina. In order Yo Hone the mansyver shilis of the IT Corps' divisions,
they were to conduct divisisn-level coperations at the R, F. Hill Fessrvalion
a5 a tunme—up for the Carolina Maneuvers. 3ince the acguisition of the "Iune 1
area" wag progressing far betier than expected, LTG Drum and MG Prati dezcided

L3 L1

to open the new installation with a "bang" by conducting an umpired large-




rale exércise in which the 44th Divisicon '"blue force" would be opposed by &

"red force" consisting of the G0th Regimental Canpat Team and the Thisd U.S,
Cavalry, boih Regular Bomy units. The speciacle of grown men lrdulglng in war
games seers to have been 2z source of amussnent for the citizens of Cargline
'..,l:..u..,_t, many of wheom stiil 5 e "June 1 area” whnen at 1700 hours an

Thuraday, June I, 1541, the The Juge 124h edition of the

Caroline Progress gsvoled 1 oF ;a,e:: af :::;:T..::—-cd accounts of th
proceedings. Although the exn lasted only four days, it represemted a
pubslicity coup as the opernang & controverszal new facility.

w
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2. Intensive Training.

After the opening extravaganza, which invelved nesarly 25,000 troops,
training at the reservat-on setiled into a pattern that continued throughout
*he summer and early fall of 1341, The remalnder of June saw the 115th and

1754k LnEantLy EEgiﬂEﬂ:n: Caibat Teams of the 29%h Division come to Caroline
fD"L day and might raneuvers. The 29th Division would use the reservation
until July 15th, when corbat zeats from the 44th Division returned for
training, culminating in divisien-leve! manewvers Zooam August lst through
15th. The 284k Division would occupy the facility and maneuver fram August
28tk until Septemier I13th, after which the 295 Divesion returned for

-

maneuvers under Il Corps supecvision,
Corps asserbled at the reservation for
2%yl

iitionally, all antitank units of the
faining Svon Bugust 4th through the

T T
)

Btaff officers of the I Corps wers in constant attendance at the
installation providing contiol and participating in comand post exercises,
When the corps headoguariers was not established on the reseprvatbtion, ecentrol of
all training activities was vested in the senior tasticel unit commander using

the facilities

Training foz II Corps und
intersive pace, which reflsctsd the det
The _ast scheduled II Corps manedver ey Rese;vat;an negan
September 13, 1841, as the 29th Divisicn stepped entoute to the Carelina
Memeuvers to engage in two weeks of :Z:::;.':A:: problems. On Thursday, SEptembEJ:

25th, the dismowmtsd =lemen =i marched o the Milfiogrd railbesd
to entrain for movemnent to North Carolisza, while the division's vehicles hegan
the long road march to the nmneuver area. Ar musuz! silence descendec upon
the &, B: Hill Reservation, whick had rarvelv had fewer than 5,000 troocps in
the Zfield, and fregquently more than 20,003, since the Zimy srrived in June
While tha Czrelins Masmeuvass were Rappenming, plans for the fubure of
&. B, B11 Ji¢;,“_y Teservetion were uncertain. The '“""op';atlaqH bill whack
hculd provide for the purchase of the "SE;iEﬂbEf 1 area’ was languiszhing in
Corigress. mke 1335th Sevvice Unit mads preparations for W¢ﬂterlzl og their
busldings and lenls without fmoisng 1% the training maneuver unmits would
resune in the spring. The probleam was that the Carclinag Mansuvers were the



culminating exercise of the BMP angd no one in the War Depart t knew what the
next step would Be, The answer woLsd come soon., Over two months after they
hacd departed, the 29th Division ved back at the reservation to bivouac
enroute Srom the Carclins Hansuvers ifo Forl seade., The date was Decemlbelr 7,
iz TS

V. The War Iears.
;1 PTSWE CTY SRR
e B ITanslvion L0 Wal.

The first wartime use of the reservation was a specidl school fa
Junior officer: and noncomissioned cfficers (NCOs) which was organized and
adrinistered by II Corps. On December 26, 1341 Lhe War Department approved
expenditure of 527,000 "for the purpose of erecting a winterized tent camp los
..L,-BDC men at A. F. J.'l.J.a... r-.J.....lu-lal.-j Reservabil .:J'iql in order to house this -:l:-‘hc":.]l;
which would provide practical instruction o zmel. wnit leadership in the
field. ©One officer and one NSO from sach letiered infantry cotpany in the
Corps was to attend the schosl. In addition 4o the students, schosi troops to
carry oul demonstration problems were assigned from the 28th Division at
Indientown Gap, Dennsylvantz, They included one battalion of infantry, one
vatiery of light Field artillery, and ane company of engineers.
Intetrestingly, the school commandant was 200 Manton J. Eddy, who nine menths
latetr would be a mmjor general and camander of the Sth Infantry Divisian.

-

Tre I Corps had intended for the A, P. Mill leadership academy to be
UrsSe

dan ongoing school. 1ts first zourse was conducted January 15 te Pebzuary 15,
1%42. However; this first cousse was a.sc the last course because II Coips
Was deplb‘,hd to Carp Blanding, Flovida, on Febouary 1780 and s divisians
reassiged Yo sther organizationg: The .::.:t-'.;ve:‘. leadership. schaol

gomstituted the final chapter of the II Corpzs and its
subdardinate wnits through fra D, Hill Malitary Reserwatbion.
Bat, 1t also providel a preview of things v came when the Saraline Progrsszs
printed a "puslic warning" that "‘e piry canuazy 1Z, live anpunition will
De fired within the "June -st se the auspices cf the II Cozps
schocl, There i1z mo record of e firing bpeing conducted before this time.
tigrn's troansition from peage Lo war.

.

Thig event symbolized the instzll

B. Army Srownd Forces angd the 2%tk Division.

When the II Corps passed fram LTG Dnum's comend, he placed cantrol of
the B. P. Hill Reservation in the hands of VI Corps at Providence; Rhode
Island, witol coptinued o use the reservaetion &5 & hingd cof armex to Foot
MEades Eor the field training of the 2%tk Divisicn. Then, toe, with fhe leng-
delayed acquisisicn of the "Se,;..m.,fe: 1 area", the establishment of service
rractJ.ce ranges for the 29th Division's artillery wmits became a reg izy. The
Bpril 30, 1942, edition of the Caroline Progress warned that the "attention of
The pub’ic g:.;: is caelled to the damgeis of entering the reservation,
Fabh_ﬂu,aklj the artillery range whers live firing practice is underway.

T‘mﬁ began what was So becoms one of the most heavily used artillery rangss
S kgl ‘N'Ea:l"1 War II.




Meanwhile, the relationship between A, P, Hill Military Reservaticn
and the 29th Division was o becane more intimate still as an indirect result
of the War Department's revised sirategic blueprint (RRINBOW-5), which
projected an & million man army of 100 divisions. t the cubtbreak of the war,
36 divisions had been organized and irained wunder the Protective Mobilizaticn
Flan. The major task of <he newly formed Army Ground Fusces (BGF) was to
organize the remainder. But, as these "new" divizions were created and began
training; the existing military installations in the United States bulged at
the seams causing "old" divisions to be moved from their permament stations to
fake room. A case in point was the 79ih Division and its less than ideal
home:, Fort Meade.

Army Ground Forces planned to activate the 76th Division at Fort
Meade, but LTS Drum protested that the installation was sufficient for only
one division. He further insisted that the location of the 29th Division in
the vicinity of Fort Meade was vital for strategic defense. ZRwmy Ground
Forces decided that the 29th Division would have bto go into the field at the
AR. P. Eill Reservation. The change of station was effected on May 20, 1942,
at a time when the bulk of the division was already training at the site.
Meanwhile, the War Department had removed VI Corps from LTG Drum's command and
shifted it, with the 29th Divisicn, to the direct control of Brmy Ground
Forces. This shift had a considerable impact on the control of A. P. Hill
Military Reservation. It was noninally an installaticn belonging to First
Amry, but the War Department had designated it as hame stablan for a division
reporting to AGF., Thus, LTC Drum found himself in the hapiliating positicn ol
having to request permissicn from AGF to use the training area that he was
responsible for creating.

C. The "Yankee Division" Arrives.

The 29th Division remained on the reservation, preparing for combat;
until July 7, 1942, when it deployed to Camp Blanding. In the meantime, the
War Department was planning to move another of the "old" divisions to the
reservation. On June 17th, the War Department directed LTG Drum to move ane
cambat team of the 26th Division tc the Carcline training area as socn as
practicable in order to make rean for the expansion of the Engineer Bmphibious
Training Center at Camp Edwards, Massachusetts. Instead, Drum moved the
entire division which ofZicially closed oan itz new home July 9th. The arrival
of the Massachusetts National Guard at a site not thirty miles fram where
their ancestors wers slaughtered at the Fredericksburg Sunken Road sesms Lo
have amused the loca]l residents. 2n article in the Caroline Progress of
Rugust 2nd wryly noted that "the very designation 'Yankee Division' and the
"Y' identification of these troops wear would not have welcomed them to soil
consecrated by Jackson's men when sectional feeling was high." However, with
sectional feeling magnamimously set aside, the 26th Division remeined in
intensive field training until Qctober 10th, when it departed for Fort Jackson
to prepare for overseas deployient.



D. Ulass IT Inctallat-on Bratis.

In Mavch 1542, the War Depariment had placed the Corps Areas under
control of the nswly formed Service of Supply (latel zemamed Army Service
Forces)., =m vculy 1%42, ihe War Jepariment renames the Corps Areas as Service
Commends and def:aed theis responsitisities, and those of their servics units,
For military instaizaiions of v which were categoriced intc
“"classes " ©noClass T instailabion £ prinsipal astivities were related %o
Services of Bupply DTumctions the control of the Service Commaned
copmander with the pomrardel comprement exergising full
authority. MHowewer, Class I: 1 were those where ACPF units were
atationed and the authority of the Service Comnands ansuch installations was
confined tc control of adrinizivasion, housekeeping and supply functions. I1
was emphazized thast the commandiig genelrsa. of 2 service comand had no control

-

avelr ot Uespeonsizility £o0 the AGP iroops iraining on the post.

E. Wartime Post Commandsy,

Because the B, Py Hill Military Jeserpvat_cn was never designated as
the home staticn of AGFE wmats for any considerable period of Lime and besausd
a nwrber ol geiivities wirelaled re conducted on the veservation, the
garrrander of the 1326tk Servics sed somewhat more cankrol than many
of his ¢ounterpalts at other 5 tlations. In large measure, fhnds

ity he station comelemsat's wartime
A Maryland Nationa. Guardsmen mabillized
withi the 29%th Divisicn in Pebrusgy 1941, LTC Munshower's backgrowd prepared
him weil for the tasks at hand., hRe had been a ville coopany Cormandes in
Pragce durisg World War I zof had =i=zer to acting commander of a battalien ir
cunbalb. Betwesn the w@wers 2e had been sleosted mayer of Fredewich, Maty.iand,
and had served as Superistendent of the Maryland State Pallice, &Eter its
activation, ths 284 Divisien's copmander had personally plicsked him to
supstvise small arms trainong, and he was actively inwvelved In other aspecdts
of post-mobilization Lraincng. He would have sesved wits distizction in ks
Sedont wal exceps he was neaviy Iifty-severn yeats old in Decexber 1541, and,
like most overaged Naticnzsl Cu=rd cers, ne was transierred to a service

e argins R o oy bt
HQNIT DBRIOLEe 4T GAVASaCIl

ten days a2ffter he zssumed conmand, LI0
commander; whao was now <0 H. S0 Brath.
sremce and enesgy can he gleanmed from
vvations znd plans te his new hoss:

O Decerber
Munshaover wrote Tz
Something of Mimshower's jud
this letter niwhich he =

"Some thitigs nave Deen 5 litile complicated which have been
biought ool by lack of Knowledge: of aayvene heis as to

what has been done and the oing on now, There has heen

ne histaorizal recofc of a2ny kept hare whichk is very
inportant. In my cpiniss our hoadgusrters should be notified when
troops o detaclments are £o ooCupy she reservalion, and

4 2o A gy b =5 - ey 4 Liaam s TP
g5 o Their logcstions, also &ny work y

to be done
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Munshower not anly made good on his plans to tighten up the 1336th Service
Unmit, but for three and one half years of intense utiligation of the trainming
area, he alsoc performed 2 delicate balancing act of the often conflicting
demands from his superiors, First Ammy, AFG, and the War Department. At the
same time, he cu‘tiua{ed outstanding public relations with & civilian
communi ty which had previously been strongly opposed to the Army's presence in
Caroline County.

F, The Eastern Defense Command.

For a brief pericd, &rom November 1942 until Fenruary 1943, the &. P.
Hill Military Reservaticn was used almost exclusively by LTG Drum's Eastern
Defense Command (EDCY, which was coeated in March 1942 to protect vital
installatiens on the East Coast. One of the EDC's tactical units was the
Mobile Force, Military District of Washingten, which guarded sensitive
installaticns in the scapital area. In May 1942, the 176th Infantry chmnent
of the Virginia National Guard was assigned to the Mobile Force and, in the
autum, began rotating itz battalions to the reservation to conduct fle‘d
training and to complete the Army Cround Forces Combat Test. Elements of the
176tk Regiment were in the training area continuously from October 1942 until
Februacy 1942. On February 20th, the entire regiment moved to the resecvation
to conduct large scale maneuvers until April 10th when it moved Lo Fort
Benning, Georgia, for assignment to the Infantry S(.hnul-

Other EDC uni*e using the reservation during this time were mobile
antiaircraft artillery units whose training was described in a letter to LIG
Drum from the commanding general of EDC's Antiaircraft Artillery Cormand,

- -y

thated Decerber 14, 1842

"o tegiments of antiaircraft artillery and one brigads

rﬁ-acﬂ.m*t rs; anti alr:La:':. are now undergoing intensive field
training at the A. P. Hill Military Reservation...All trocoa

live in base canps u‘dm' tentage drawn locally but spend the

far greater proporticn of their time in field bivouac in the course
of training problems, The program has been progressive, starting
with battery and battzlion problems conducted by battalion
camanders, Wwith regimental ;;r'ﬂﬁlv’:’“s, first conducted by regimental
commanders and later by the krigade commander, followed by brigade
proklams stilizing all forces present and avallable."

The letter closed with a rscommendstion that more field training of this sort
he eonducted. 3ut, LTG Dmim's endorsement of this suggestion was not well
regeived in the War Depariment. "."'.":e winter of 1942-42 was the last time that
Eastern Defense Cormmend extensively used the B. P, Eill Reservation.

3. Productivity and the XIII Rxmy Corps.

= Imerica entersd her sscond vesr of war, the mighty military

=18=



establishment created by General Marshall rolled along in high gear and A. P.
Hill Military Reservation began its most productiive and diversified period.
1ts contribution to the success of the American juggeimaut in 1843 was
vrimarily the continuation of its service as a maneuver area for the advanced
tactical training of large units, while providing range facilities for
artillery, armor, antitank and antiaircraft units. For 1943 and the first =iz
months of 1944, ¥I1I Corps was cgesignated as the principal using agency for
the reservation. But, just prior to this AGF had brought the 38th Division of
the Texas National Guard to the training area in the last week of February for
Combat Training Tests just prior to overseas movement. The tests were
auccessful*y Lmﬁple‘ed and the divisicn departed March 18, 1943. By April 3rd
it was in North Africa preparing for the landing at Salerno, Italy.

Even before the 36th Division departed, the first major influx of XITI
Corps units arrived. Between March 1l1th and the 18th, the following array of
field artillery (F2) reported to LTC Munshower: 15th FA Observation Balloon
Battalion; 7ist FA Battalion; 186th FA Battalion; 187th FA Battalion; 953rd FA
Battalion; 955th FA Battalion: 991st FA Battaliom; 258th FA Group; 186th FA
Croup; and l87th FA uruup Theze wunits conducted extensxvu field training
under the command of the 71st FA Brigade. The entire exercise was conducted
by the Second HeadqnaLters Detachment, Special Troops; XIII Corps, which
arrived at the reservation on March 17th., Thus began a periecd of extremely
heavy use by the XIII Curps. The post recorded a daily average strength of
21,000 men for the month of Maych 1943, Por the duration of 1943, NIII Corps
never had fewer than several thousand personnel in the field at the
reservation.

The concentration of such large nunbers of troops at a field maneuver

site where facilities were deliberately kept to a minimun ocbviously posed a
nurber of lcgiut;cal problems for the 1336th Service Unit. The Carcline

rogress on Pebruary 11, 1943, reported that the Bowling Green U.5.0. had
contracted for an addition to house expanded shower facilities. The article
noted that "shower facilities with nhot and cold water are greatly in
danand...in a Field-meneuver area like A, P, Hill Military Reservation, where
most of the troops are guartered in tents." It further remarked that 400 to
EDG men frequently showed up in a single day to shower at the 1.5.0. club.
Even more interesting is the description of Post Exchange operations found in
the December 16, 1943, edition of the paper:

" 11t is an odd business, because of the way in which these
tactical units fill up this place one week and depart ancther.
We may have seven or e;ghr "stores" one wesk and twenty-thres
riext week,' said,..the Field Exchange Officer for A. P. Hill...
The 1336tk Service Unit has an entire detachment which is
devated te setting up and operating these excnanges in pyramical
tents near the troops deploved over hill and dale.™

In July 1943, the A. P. Hill Reservation became hame station for
another division evicted from itz guarters as installationz continued to



expand to meet the needs of mobilization. The latest tenant was the 76th
Divisieon, which left Fort Meade to make room for the RASE Replacement Training
Center. Ironically, it was the 76th Division's activation that forced the
29th Division to move to the reservation. The division spent the summer of
1943 conducting advanced field training until it departed for Camp MeCoy,
Wisconsin, on October 3rd.

Throughout 1943, the ranges at the reservation were used by the
ntiaircraft Replacement Training Center at Fort Eustis, Virginia. Although
{he BA RTC would no longer need this facility in early 1944, the XIIT Corps
would utilize the training area and ranges until the end of the war.

H. 1944 'Till War's End.

In 1944, the average daily strength on the reservation dropped to
3,455, but there was a variety of units in training. The installation was
used extensively for the field training of Rrmy Service Force (ASF; formerly
Services of Supply) personnel from nearby training centers at Fort Belvoir and
Camp Lee in Virginia and Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland. the trainees were
destined for assignment in the Corps of Engineers, Quartermaster Corps, ob
Ordnance Corps. Field training was also provided for officers and officer
candidates from the Engineer and Quartermaster Schoals. Developmental and
test work was conducted by the Engineer and Quartermaster Beoards,

In 1945, with the war winding down, A. P. Hill Military Reservation
began to inherit training missions due to the closure of camps and expiration
of leases on other maneuver areas. Field training, combat service training,
and officer candidate training for the Chemical Warfare Service was shifted to
the reservation since no other ares suitable for the use of toxic chemicals
and smoke generation was available. When Fort Story and Camp Pickett, both in
Virginia, were converted to convalescent centers, the amount of antiaircraft
machinegun firing and artillery range use increased an the installation.
Because of this shifting of sc much ASF training activities to this
reservation, the Commanding General, Army Service Forces, reguested that A. P.
Hill Military Eeservation be designated a Class I installation for better
coordination of ASF activities, However, the Army Ground Forces did not
concur for the following reasons:

1. Maneuver areas and ranges at the reservation were reguired
ta afford adeguate facilities for combat units at Camp Pickett
which had somewhat limited mansuver aress and artillery ranges.

2. The ressryation would afford a necessary training facility for
troop wunits stationed in Washington and vicinity.

3. The reservation would be of great valus for training National
Cuard personnel of the District of Colurbia and adjacent areas. (In
fact, it was contewplated thet eignt National Guard Divisionms in New
England and North Ztlantic states would carry out heavy field artillery
training here.



4, The reservation was required for redeployment training of AGF wmits
(i.e., ten coast artillery batteries would receive training to fire land
targets;: elements of both Amy Air Force and naval air foree would uss
the range facilities; and the reservation was an adjunct to Camp
Pickett).

The AFC response went on to assure ASF that coprdination was not a problem
since, according to Army Regulation 210-10, "the post commander will be
responsible for providing all units at this post with proportionate share of
available and appropriate training facilities.”

Bs you can cee, B, P, Hill Military Reservation stayed very active
until the war's end. Then, speculators began inguiring when the property
would be availabie for purchase. BEut, the War Department had no immediate
intention of declaring this training area as excess, for the reasons stated by
ACF above. Their reply to the speculators was that they contemplated the
continued utilization of the installation for an indefinite period.

VI. The Indefinite Period (After the War to the Present, Briefly).

In 1944, the average daily strength on the reservation began to drop
and utilization fell off gradually to a very low level during 1347 through
1949, But, the 1950's brought a revitalization and improvements to the road
system, firing ranges, campsites and airfield., On May 1, 1952, A, P. Hill
Military Reservation became Camp A. P. Hill. Training was conducted the year
round, a trend that has continued today.

In 1561, Second U. S. Army, under whose jurisdiction Camp A. P. Hill
now fell, anticipated that combat divisions of the Reserve Camponents would
train at the post thereafter. During 1962-63, a major expansion of the range
complex occurred with the construction of electrical trainfire ranges, Army
Training Test courses for crew-served weapons, and combat attack courses fov
squads and platoons. Then, curing the early Vietnam Era, more ranges were
built: two 200-man classrooms were completed in 1966; and Anderson Camp was
improved in 1967 with metal hutments to house students from the Engineer
Officer Basic Course anc Officer Candidate School.

The 1970's were years for improvement and expansion of post
farilities. Om September 30, 1974, Capp Hill became Fort A. P. Hill, a
recognition attesting to its importance and permenence. In fackt, the first
pefmanent-type campsite, The 0ld Guard Camp, was constructed in 1970.
Logistical support was improved with the completion of a new ammunition supply
point in 1971 and a direct/general support maintenance shop in 1872, A
training site was built in 1%73 to provide the advanced individual training
{AIT) of engineer skills. Then in 1977, the new barracks and acministrative
offices for the Army CGarrison were completed,

Construction and training continued throughout the 19807s. Fort A, P.
Hill solidified its reputation as a leader in the continuing effort to



and cther ﬂ:l;:a“y services and government agsncles
with “he finest and most realistic field training possible. The Fort u:.n&:t-red
its ties with the newly activated 2%9th Infantry Division {(Light) by having the
Second Brigade end the Light Infantry Training Detachment as tenants. Then,
in 1950, Fort 2. P, Hill came full circle in its nistory ss s mebilization
station when 2% begas training and prepaviss Ly Reserveqand National Guar
units for deploymant to the Middle East a2s part of Cperation Descrt Shield.

s T
irst £

The hEsrt;,hﬂu an? addustments have been many during the £4
century. Today, a3 well as in ihe grim "‘”55 of ES years ago, the fact remadns
“hat -Lalnl“g for defernce i net 2 nigety, but an imperative for all who value
Freedan, because freedom isn't free. Ankbross Em-e.__;. #2111 would ke the firs=t
to agree,
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